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to the Tier 4 standards of this part 
must also conform fully to the Annex 
VITier III NOX standards as described 
in 40 CFR part 1043. 

(ii) The engine may not be used for 
propulsion (except for emergency en-
gines). 

(iii) Engines certified to the Annex 
VI Tier III standards may be equipped 
with on-off NOX controls, as long as 
they conform to the requirements of 
§§ 1042.110(d) and 1042.115(g); however, 
the engines must comply fully with the 
Annex VI Tier II standards when the 
emission controls are disabled, and 
meet any other requirements that 
apply underAnnex VI. 

(2) You must notify the Designated 
Compliance Officer of your intent to 
use this exemption before you intro-
duce engines into U.S. commerce, not 
later than the time that you apply for 
an EIAPP certificate for the engine 
under 40 CFR part 1043. 

(3) The remanufactured engine re-
quirements of subpart I of this part do 
not apply. 

(4) If you introduce an engine into 
U.S. commerce under this paragraph 
(d), you must meet the labeling re-
quirements in § 1042.135, but add the fol-
lowing statement instead of the com-
pliance statement in § 1042.135(c)(10): 

THIS ENGINE DOES NOT COMPLY WITH 
CURRENT U.S. EPA EMISSION STAND-
ARDS UNDER 40 CFR 1042.650 AND IS FOR 
USE SOLELY IN VESSELS WITH CAT-
EGORY 3 PROPULSION ENGINES. INSTAL-
LATION OR USE OF THIS ENGINE IN ANY 
OTHER APPLICATION MAY BE A VIOLA-
TION OF FEDERAL LAW SUBJECT TO 
CIVIL PENALTY. 

(5) The reporting requirements of 
§ 1042.660 apply for engines exempted 
under this paragraph (d). 

[73 FR 37243, June 30, 2008, as amended at 75 
FR 23007, Apr. 30, 2010; 81 FR 74151, Oct. 25, 
2016; 86 FR 34512, June 29, 2021] 

§ 1042.655 Special certification provi-
sions for Category 3 engines with 
aftertreatment. 

This section describes an optional ap-
proach for demonstrating for certifi-
cation that catalyst-equipped engines 
(or engines equipped with other 
aftertreatment devices) comply with 
applicable emission standards. You 

must use good engineering judgment 
for all aspects of this allowance. 

(a) Eligibility. You may use the provi-
sions of this section without our prior 
approval to demonstrate that 
aftertreatment-equipped Category 3 en-
gines meet the Tier 3 standards. In un-
usual circumstances, we may also 
allow you to use this approach to dem-
onstrate that aftertreatment-equipped 
Category 2 engines meet the Tier 4 
standards. We will generally approve 
this for Category 2 engines only if the 
engines are too large to be practically 
tested in a laboratory with a fully as-
sembled aftertreatment system. If we 
approve this approach for a Category 2 
engine, interpret references to Tier 3 in 
this section to mean Tier 4, and inter-
pret references to Tier 2 in this section 
to mean Tier 3. 

(b) Required testing. The emission- 
data engine must be tested as specified 
in subpart F of this part. Testing en-
gine-out emissions to simulate oper-
ation with disabled Tier 3 emission 
controls must simulate backpressure 
and other parameters as needed to rep-
resent in-use operation with an SCR 
catalyst. The catalyst material or 
other aftertreatment device must be 
tested under conditions that accu-
rately represent actual engine condi-
tions for the test points. This catalyst 
or aftertreatment testing may be per-
formed on a bench scale. 

(c) Engineering analysis. Include with 
your application a detailed engineering 
analysis describing how the test data 
collected for the engine and 
aftertreatment demonstrate that all 
engines in the family will meet all ap-
plicable emission standards. We may 
require that you submit this analysis 
separately from your application, or 
that you obtain preliminary approval 
under § 1042.210. 

(d) Verification. You must verify your 
design by testing a complete produc-
tion engine with installed 
aftertreatment in the final assembled 
configuration. Unless we specify other-
wise, do this by complying with pro-
duction-line testing requirements of 
subpart D of this part. 

(e) Other requirements. All other re-
quirements of this part, including the 
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non-testing requirements for certifi-
cation, apply for these engines. Noth-
ing in this section affects requirements 
in other regulatory parts, such as 
Coast Guard safety requirements. 

[75 FR 23007, Apr. 30, 2010, as amended at 81 
FR 74151, Oct. 25, 2016; 86 FR 34512, June 29, 
2021] 

§ 1042.660 Requirements for vessel 
manufacturers, owners, and opera-
tors. 

(a) For vessels equipped with emis-
sion controls requiring the use of spe-
cific fuels, lubricants, or other fluids, 
owners and operators must comply 
with the manufacturer/remanufactur-
er’s specifications for such fluids when 
operating the vessels. Failure to com-
ply with the requirements of this para-
graph is a violation of 40 CFR 
1068.101(b)(1). For marine vessels that 
are excluded from the requirements of 
40 CFR part 1043 because they operate 
only domestically, it is also a violation 
of 40 CFR 1068.101(b)(1) to operate the 
vessel using residual fuel on or after 
January 1, 2015. Note that 40 CFR part 
1090 also includes provisions that re-
strict the use of certain fuels by cer-
tain marine engines. 

(b) For vessels equipped with SCR 
systems requiring the use of urea or 
other reductants, owners and operators 
must report to the Designated Compli-
ance Officer within 30 days any oper-
ation of such vessels without the ap-
propriate reductant. For each report-
able incident, include the cause of the 
noncompliant operation, the remedy, 
and an estimate of the extent of oper-
ation without reductant. You must 
remedy the problem as soon as prac-
ticable to avoid violating the tam-
pering prohibition in 40 CFR 
1068.101(b)(1). If the remedy is not com-
plete within 30 days of the incident, no-
tify the Designated Compliance Officer 
when the issue is resolved, along with 
any relevant additional information re-
lated to the repair. This reporting re-
quirement applies for all engines on 
covered vessels even if the engines are 
certified to Annex VI standards instead 
of or in addition to EPA standards 
under this part. Failure to comply with 
the reporting requirements of this 
paragraph (b) is a violation of 40 CFR 
1068.101(a)(2). Note that operating such 

engines without reductant is a viola-
tion of 40 CFR 1068.101(b)(1). 

(c) The provisions of this paragraph 
(c) apply for marine vessels containing 
Category 3 engines. 

(1) The requirements of this para-
graph (c)(1) apply only for Category 3 
engines. All maintenance, repair, ad-
justment, and alteration of Category 3 
engines subject to the provisions of 
this part performed by any owner, op-
erator or other maintenance provider 
must be performed using good engi-
neering judgment, in such a manner 
that the engine continues (after the 
maintenance, repair, adjustment or al-
teration) to meet the emission stand-
ards it was certified as meeting prior 
to the need for service. This includes 
but is not limited to complying with 
the maintenance instructions described 
in § 1042.125. Adjustments are limited to 
the range specified by the engine man-
ufacturer in the approved application 
for certification. Note that where a re-
pair (or other maintenance) cannot be 
completed while at sea, it is not a vio-
lation to continue operating the engine 
to reach your destination. 

(2) It is a violation of 40 CFR 
1068.101(b)(1) to operate the vessel with 
the engine adjusted outside of the spec-
ified adjustable range. Each two-hour 
period of such operation constitutes a 
separate offense. A violation lasting 
less than two hours constitutes a single 
offense. 

(3) The owner and operator of the en-
gine must maintain on board the vessel 
records of all maintenance, repair, and 
adjustment that could reasonably af-
fect the emission performance of any 
engine subject to the provision of this 
part. Owners and operators must also 
maintain, on board the vessel, records 
regarding certification, parameter ad-
justment, and fuels used. For engines 
that are automatically adjusted elec-
tronically, all adjustments must be 
logged automatically. Owners and op-
erators must make these records avail-
able to EPA upon request. These 
records must include the following: 

(i) The Technical File, Record Book 
of Engine Parameters, and bunker de-
livery notes as specified in 40 CFR 
1043.70. The Technical File must be 
transferred to subsequent purchasers in 
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